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PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (UNAUDITED)

(amounts in thousands, except share amounts and par value)

    June 30, 2021     March 31, 2022
ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 80,613 $ 83,279
Accounts receivable, net  290,653  282,872
Inventories  294,208  344,643
Prepaid expenses and other current assets  43,930  47,742

Total current assets  709,404  758,536
Property and equipment, net  118,004  112,755
Goodwill  320,304  336,655
Intangible assets, net  127,608  139,781
Other assets  109,047  111,364

Total assets $ 1,384,367 $ 1,459,091
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Bank lines of credit $ — $ 73,000
Current portion of long-term debt  846  249,315
Accounts payable  141,263  129,812
Accrued payroll and related expenses  50,816  40,469
Advances from customers  38,463  45,914
Other accrued expenses and current liabilities  113,379  107,326

Total current liabilities  344,767  645,836
Long-term debt  276,421  48,708
Deferred income taxes  7,157  4,658
Other long-term liabilities  116,202  141,395

Total liabilities  744,547  840,597
Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value— 10,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued or

outstanding  —  —
Common stock, $0.001 par value—100,000,000 shares authorized; issued and outstanding,

17,854,110 shares at June 30, 2021 and 17,043,853 shares at March 31, 2022  105,724  17
Retained earnings  548,842  637,734
Accumulated other comprehensive loss  (14,746)  (19,257)

Total stockholders’ equity  639,820  618,494
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 1,384,367 $ 1,459,091

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.



Table of Contents

4

OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

(amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31, 
    2021     2022     2021     2022

Net revenues:             
Products $ 217,124 $ 221,857 $ 608,238 $ 634,446
Services  66,663  68,620  206,466  211,969

Total net revenues  283,787  290,477  814,704  846,415
Cost of goods sold:

Products  144,958  150,311  409,692  432,277
Services  34,810  37,308  103,161  112,177

Total cost of goods sold  179,768  187,619  512,853  544,454
Gross profit  104,019  102,858  301,851  301,961
Operating expenses:

Selling, general and administrative  57,906  57,813  172,624  170,015
Research and development  13,932  15,150  39,798  44,944
Impairment, restructuring and other charges (benefit), net  (285)  1,469  7,912  4,810

Total operating expenses  71,553  74,432  220,334  219,769
Income from operations  32,466  28,426  81,517  82,192
Interest and other expense, net  (4,167)  (2,301)  (12,589)  (6,534)
Other income, net — 27,373 — 27,373
Income before income taxes  28,299  53,498  68,928  103,031
Provision for income taxes  (9,526)  (10,763)  (20,773)  (21,447)
Net income $ 18,773 $ 42,735 $ 48,155 $ 81,584
Earnings per share:

Basic $ 1.04 $ 2.45 $ 2.68 $ 4.60
Diluted $ 1.03 $ 2.41 $ 2.63 $ 4.52

Shares used in per share calculation:
Basic  17,969  17,417  17,981  17,734
Diluted  18,298  17,709  18,278  18,036

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (UNAUDITED)

(amounts in thousands)

Three Months Ended March 31,     Nine Months Ended March 31, 
    2021     2022     2021     2022

Net income $ 18,773 $ 42,735 $ 48,155 $ 81,584
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Foreign currency translation adjustment (503) (1,981)  7,219  (4,907)
Other 59 132 176 396

Other comprehensive income (loss) (444) (1,849) 7,395 (4,511)
Comprehensive income $ 18,329 $ 40,886 $ 55,550 $ 77,073

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.



Table of Contents

6

OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (UNAUDITED)

(amounts in thousands, except share data)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2021
Accumulated

Common Stock Other
    Number of         Retained     Comprehensive     
    Shares     Amount     Earnings     Loss     Total

Balance—December 31, 2020  17,933,256 $ 100,816 $ 504,175 $ (17,355) $ 587,636
Exercise of stock options  9,703 624 — — 624
Vesting of RSUs  6,519 — — — —
Shares issued under employee stock purchase program  35,539 2,193 — — 2,193
Stock-based compensation expense  — 7,565 — — 7,565
Repurchase of common stock (2,452) (235) — — (235)
Taxes paid related to net share settlement of equity

awards  (2,358) (219) — — (219)
Net income  — — 18,773 — 18,773
Other comprehensive loss  — — — (444) (444)

Balance—March 31, 2021 17,980,207 $ 110,744 $ 522,948 $ (17,799) $ 615,893

Three Months Ended March 31, 2022
Accumulated

Common Stock Other
    Number of         Retained     Comprehensive     
    Shares     Amount     Earnings     Loss     Total

Balance—December 31, 2021 17,643,903 $ 30,909 $ 606,647 $ (17,408) $ 620,148
Vesting of RSUs 6,027 — — — —
Shares issued under employee stock purchase program 32,105 2,307 — — 2,307
Stock-based compensation expense — 6,898 — — 6,898
Repurchase of common stock (635,962) (39,904) (11,648) — (51,552)
Taxes paid related to net share settlement of equity

awards (2,220) (193) — — (193)
Net income — — 42,735 — 42,735
Other comprehensive loss — — — (1,849) (1,849)

Balance—March 31, 2022  17,043,853 $ 17 $ 637,734 $ (19,257) $ 618,494
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Nine Months Ended March 31, 2021
Accumulated

Common Stock Other
    Number of         Retained     Comprehensive     
    Shares     Amount     Earnings     Loss     Total

Balance—June 30, 2020  18,011,982 $ 122,553 $ 474,793 $ (25,194) $ 572,152
Exercise of stock options  87,235  1,187  —  —  1,187
Vesting of RSUs  310,939  —  —  —  —
Shares issued under employee stock purchase program  68,180  4,215  —  —  4,215
Stock-based compensation expense  —  19,386  —  —  19,386
Repurchase of common stock (322,588) (25,051) — — (25,051)
Taxes paid related to net share settlement of equity

awards  (175,541)  (11,546)  —  —  (11,546)
Net income  —  —  48,155  —  48,155
Other comprehensive income  —  —  —  7,395  7,395

Balance—March 31, 2021 17,980,207 $ 110,744 $ 522,948 $ (17,799) $ 615,893

Nine Months Ended March 31, 2022
Accumulated

Common Stock Other
    Number of         Retained     Comprehensive     
    Shares     Amount     Earnings     Loss     Total

Balance—June 30, 2021  17,854,110 $ 105,724 $ 548,842 $ (14,746) $ 639,820
Exercise of stock options  164,612 311 — — 311
Vesting of RSUs  335,099 — — — —
Shares issued under employee stock purchase program  60,065 4,297 — — 4,297
Stock-based compensation expense  — 20,986 — — 20,986
Repurchase of common stock (1,117,258) (85,184) (11,648) — (96,832)
Taxes paid related to net share settlement of equity

awards  (252,775) (19,354) — — (19,354)
Adoption of ASU 2020-06 for convertible notes — (26,763) 18,956 — (7,807)
Net income  — — 81,584 — 81,584
Other comprehensive loss  — — — (4,511) (4,511)

Balance—March 31, 2022 17,043,853 $ 17 $ 637,734 $ (19,257) $ 618,494
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OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)

(amounts in thousands)

Nine Months Ended March 31, 
    2021     2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES             
Net income $ 48,155 $ 81,584
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities, net of effects from

acquisitions:
Depreciation and amortization  31,433  28,980
Stock-based compensation expense  19,386  20,986
Provision for (recovery of) losses on accounts receivable 6,176 (3,836)
Deferred income taxes (1,364)  1,448
Amortization of debt discount and issuance costs  7,277 1,045
Impairment charges 552 —
Gain on sale of property and equipment — (27,373)
Other  (217)  (1,074)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities—net of business acquisitions:

Accounts receivable  6,714  10,613
Inventories  (43,162)  (53,766)
Prepaid expenses and other assets  (4,263)  8,010
Accounts payable  37,113  (11,000)
Accrued payroll and related expenses 363 (9,837)
Advances from customers  19,468  7,523
Other  3,422  (11,490)

Net cash provided by operating activities  131,053  41,813
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property and equipment  (12,149)  (10,293)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 994 32,304
Purchases of certificates of deposit (4,820) (2,201)
Proceeds from certificates of deposit 2,690 55
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired  (3,000)  (14,132)
Payments for intangible and other assets  (9,878)  (12,320)

Net cash used in investing activities  (26,163)  (6,587)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net borrowings (repayments) on bank lines of credit  (59,000)  73,000
Proceeds from long-term debt  413  50,285
Payments on long-term debt  (778)  (40,893)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and employee stock purchase plan  5,402  4,608
Payments of contingent consideration (854) (1,671)
Repurchases of common stock  (25,051)  (96,832)
Taxes paid related to net share settlement of equity awards  (11,546)  (19,354)

Net cash used in financing activities  (91,414)  (30,857)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash  2,887  (1,703)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents  16,363  2,666
Cash and cash equivalents—beginning of period  76,102  80,613
Cash and cash equivalents—end of period $ 92,465 $ 83,279
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid, net during the period for:
Interest $ 5,721 $ 5,851
Income taxes $ 8,074 $ 9,964

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

1. Basis of Presentation

The condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of OSI Systems, Inc. and our subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The condensed consolidated financial statements have
been prepared by management in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”)
and in conjunction with the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Certain information and footnote
disclosures required for annual financial statements have been condensed or excluded in accordance with SEC rules and regulations and
GAAP applicable to interim unaudited financial statements. Accordingly, the condensed consolidated financial statements do not include
all of the information and footnotes required by GAAP for audited annual financial statements. In the opinion of management, the
condensed consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments of a normal and recurring nature that are considered necessary for a
fair presentation of the results for the interim periods presented. These unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and the
accompanying notes should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes included
in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 filed with the SEC. The results of operations for the three
and nine months ended March 31, 2022 are not necessarily indicative of the operating results to be expected for the full 2022 fiscal year
or any future periods.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of sales and costs of sales during the reporting period. The most significant of these estimates and assumptions
for our company relate to contract revenue, fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in business combinations, values for
inventories reported at lower of cost or net realizable value, stock-based compensation expense, income taxes, accrued warranty costs,
legal contingencies and recoveries, and the recoverability, useful lives and valuation of recorded amounts of long-lived assets,
identifiable intangible assets and goodwill. Changes in estimates are reflected in the periods during which they become known. Due to
the inherent uncertainty involved in making estimates, our actual amounts reported in future periods could differ materially from these
estimates.

Earnings Per Share Computations

We compute basic earnings per share by dividing net income available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period. We compute diluted earnings per share by dividing net income available to common
stockholders by the sum of the weighted average number of common shares and dilutive potential common shares outstanding during the
period. Potential common shares consist of the shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options and restricted stock unit awards under
the treasury stock method. The underlying equity component of the 1.25% convertible senior notes due 2022 (the “Notes”) discussed in
Note 8 to the condensed consolidated financial statements will have a net impact on diluted earnings per share when the average price of
our common stock exceeds the conversion price of $107.46 because the principal amount of the Notes is intended to be settled in cash
upon conversion. There was no dilutive effect of the Notes for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021 and 2022.
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The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31, 
    2021     2022     2021     2022

Net income available to common stockholders $ 18,773 $ 42,735 $ 48,155 $ 81,584

Weighted average shares outstanding—basic 17,969 17,417  17,981  17,734
Dilutive effect of equity awards 329 292  297  302
Weighted average shares outstanding—diluted 18,298 17,709  18,278  18,036

Basic earnings per share $ 1.04 $ 2.45 $ 2.68 $ 4.60
Diluted earnings per share $ 1.03 $ 2.41 $ 2.63 $ 4.52
Shares excluded from diluted earnings per share due to their anti-dilutive

effect 51 211 64 62

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less as of the acquisition date to be cash equivalents.

Our cash and cash equivalents totaled $83.3 million at March 31, 2022. Of this amount, approximately 79% was held by our foreign
subsidiaries and subject to repatriation tax considerations. These foreign funds were held primarily by our subsidiaries in the United
Kingdom, Singapore, India, Malaysia, and Canada, and to a lesser extent in Australia, Albania, Indonesia and Mexico among other
countries. We have cash holdings in financial institutions that exceed insured limits for such financial institutions; however, we mitigate
this risk by utilizing international financial institutions of high credit quality.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Our financial instruments consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, insurance company contracts, accounts receivable, accounts
payable, debt instruments and foreign currency forward contracts. The carrying values of financial instruments, other than long term debt
instruments, are representative of their fair values due to their short-term maturities. The carrying values of our long-term debt
instruments are considered to approximate their fair values because the interest rates of these instruments are variable or comparable to
current rates for financing available to us. The fair values of our foreign currency forward contracts were not significant as of June 30,
2021 and March 31, 2022.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The Level 1 category includes assets and liabilities measured at quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities. The Level 2 category includes assets and liabilities measured from observable inputs other than quoted
market prices. The Level 3 category includes assets and liabilities for which valuation inputs are unobservable and significant to the fair
value measurement. Our contingent payment obligations related to acquisitions, which are further discussed in Note 10 to the condensed
consolidated financial statements, are in the Level 3 category for valuation purposes.

The fair values of our financial assets and liabilities are categorized as follows (in thousands):

    June 30, 2021     March 31, 2022
    Level 1     Level 2     Level 3     Total     Level 1     Level 2     Level 3     Total

Assets—Insurance company contracts $ — $ 47,113 $ — $ 47,113 $ — $ 47,162 $ — $ 47,162
Liabilities—Contingent consideration $ — $ — $ 19,431 $ 19,431 $ — $ — $ 28,266 $ 28,266

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activity

Our use of derivatives consists of foreign currency forward contracts. These forward contracts are utilized to partially mitigate certain
balance sheet exposures or used as a net investment hedge to protect against potential changes resulting from short-term foreign currency
fluctuations. These contracts have original maturities of up to three months. We do not use hedging instruments for speculative purposes.
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The net investment hedge has been designated as a hedge instrument and accounted for under Accounting Standards Codification
(“ASC”) 815 Derivatives and Hedging. Hedge effectiveness is assessed using the spot method, consistent with guidance in ASC 815
whereby the change in fair value of the forward contract is recorded in the same manner as the related currency translation adjustments,
within other comprehensive income, as the hedging instrument is expected to be fully effective unless the amount hedged exceeds the net
investment in the foreign operation, or the foreign operation is liquidated. There were no net investment hedges outstanding as of June
30, 2021 and March 31, 2022.

The net gains or losses from our foreign currency forward contracts, which are not designated as hedge instruments, are reported in the
consolidated income statement. The amounts reported in the consolidated income statement for the three and nine months ended March
31, 2021 and 2022 were not significant. The fair value of our forward foreign exchange contracts is estimated using a standard valuation
model and market-based observable inputs over the contractual term. Unrealized gains are recognized as assets and unrealized losses are
recognized as liabilities. As of June 30, 2021 and March 31, 2022, we held foreign currency forward contracts with notional amounts
totaling $26.1 million and $21.0 million, respectively. Unrealized gains and losses from our forward currency forward contracts as of
March 31, 2021 and 2022 were not significant.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

Convertible Debt

In August 2020, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2020-06, Accounting for Convertible Instruments and Contracts in an
Entity’s Own Equity (“ASU 2020-06”). Under ASU 2020-06, the embedded conversion features are no longer separated from the host
contract for convertible instruments with conversion features that are not required to be accounted for as derivatives under Topic 815,
Derivatives and Hedging, or that do not result in substantial premiums accounted for as paid-in capital. Consequently, a convertible debt
instrument will be accounted for as a single liability measured at its amortized cost, as long as no other features require bifurcation and
recognition as derivatives. By removing those separation models, the effective interest rate of convertible debt instruments typically will
be closer to the coupon interest rate. The guidance is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2021, and interim periods within those fiscal years, with early adoption permitted, but only at the beginning of the fiscal year. We
early adopted the new guidance on July 1, 2021 using the modified retrospective approach and recorded a $19 million increase to
retained earnings and a reduction of $27 million in common stock as if there had been no equity component. Additionally, we recorded
an increase to the convertible notes balance of $10 million. Interest expense recognized subsequent to adoption on July 1, 2021 is
reduced as a result of accounting for the convertible debt instrument as a single liability measured at its amortized cost.

Income Taxes

In December 2019, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2019-12, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Simplifying the Accounting for
Income Taxes (“ASU 2019-12”). ASU 2019-12 removes certain exceptions to the general principles of ASC 740 and is intended to
improve consistency and simplify GAAP in several other areas of ASC 740 by clarifying and amending existing guidance. The ASU
applies to all entities that pay income taxes under GAAP. We adopted this accounting pronouncement on July 1, 2021 using the modified
prospective approach. The adoption of ASU 2019-12 did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities from Revenue Contracts with Customers in a Business Combination

In October 2021, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2021-08, an accounting standard update to improve the accounting for
contract assets and contract liabilities from revenue contracts with customers in a business combination (Topic 805). This amendment
improves comparability for both the recognition and measurement of acquired revenue contracts with customers at the date of and after a
business combination. This authoritative guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, and interim periods
within those fiscal years, with early adoption permitted. We early adopted the new guidance effective January 1, 2022 using the
prospective approach and applied the amendments to both business combinations that occurred during the three months ended March 31,
2022. The adoption of ASU 2021-08 did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
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2. Business Combinations

Under ASC 805, Business Combinations, the acquisition method of accounting requires us to record assets acquired less liabilities
assumed in an acquisition at their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition. Any excess of the total estimated purchase
consideration over the estimated fair value of the assets acquired less liabilities assumed should be recorded as goodwill. Such valuations
require management to make significant estimates and assumptions, especially with respect to intangible assets. Significant estimates in
valuing certain intangible assets include, but are not limited to, future expected cash flows from acquired customers, acquired technology,
trade names, useful lives and discount rates. Management’s estimates of fair value are based upon assumptions which are believed to be
reasonable, but which are inherently uncertain and unpredictable and, as a result, actual results may differ from estimates. We may record
adjustments to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, with corresponding adjustments to goodwill, during the one-year post-
acquisition measurement period as additional information becomes available. Any adjustments subsequent to the conclusion of such one-
year measurement period are reflected in reported earnings.

Fiscal Year 2022 Business Acquisitions

In February 2022, we (through our Security division) acquired a privately held provider of intelligent inspection, sensory, and recognition
solutions for approximately $14 million, plus up to $25 million in potential contingent consideration. The acquisition was financed with
cash on hand and borrowings under our revolving bank line of credit. The goodwill recognized for this business is not deductible for
income tax purposes.

In February 2022, we (through our Security division) acquired a privately held sales and services company for approximately $1.1
million, plus an immaterial amount of potential contingent consideration. The acquisition was financed with cash on hand. The goodwill
recognized for this transaction is deductible for income tax purposes.

These business acquisitions, individually and in the aggregate, were not material to our consolidated financial statements. Accordingly,
pro-forma historical results of operations and other disclosures related to these businesses have not been presented.

3. Balance Sheet Details

The following tables provide details of selected balance sheet accounts (in thousands):

June 30, March 31, 
Accounts receivable, net     2021     2022
Accounts receivable $ 315,926     $ 304,042
Less allowance for doubtful accounts  (25,273)  (21,170)

Total $ 290,653 $ 282,872

June 30, March 31, 
Inventories     2021     2022
Raw materials $ 160,313     $ 194,643
Work-in-process  59,594  72,135
Finished goods  74,301  77,865

Total $ 294,208 $ 344,643
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June 30, March 31, 
Property and equipment, net     2021 2022
Land $ 16,357     $ 15,029
Buildings, civil works and improvements  57,555  47,438
Leasehold improvements  8,874  11,643
Equipment and tooling  129,735  131,222
Furniture and fixtures  3,275  3,726
Computer equipment  19,349  20,713
Computer software  23,090  24,506
Computer software implementation in process 11,102 10,550
Construction in process  4,011  4,771

Total  273,348  269,598
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization  (155,344)  (156,843)

Property and equipment, net $ 118,004 $ 112,755

Depreciation and amortization expense for property and equipment was $5.5 million and $5.4 million for the three months ended March
31, 2021 and 2022, respectively, and $16.3 million and $16.0 million for the nine months ended March 31, 2021 and 2022, respectively.
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4. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The changes in the carrying value of goodwill by segment for the nine-month period ended March 31, 2022 were as follows (in
thousands)

Optoelectronics
And

Security Healthcare Manufacturing
    Division     Division     Division     Consolidated

Balance as of June 30, 2021 $ 206,426 $ 43,584 $ 70,294 $ 320,304
Goodwill acquired or adjusted during the period  17,703  —  —  17,703
Foreign currency translation adjustment  (20)  (181)  (1,151)  (1,352)

Balance as of March 31, 2022 $ 224,109 $ 43,403 $ 69,143 $ 336,655

Intangible assets consisted of the following (in thousands):

June 30, 2021 March 31, 2022
Weighted Gross Gross
Average Carrying Accumulated Intangibles Carrying Accumulated Intangibles

    Lives     Value     Amortization    Net     Value     Amortization    Net
Amortizable assets:
Software development costs  8-9 years $ 49,183 $ (15,679) $ 33,504 $ 60,652 $ (18,032) $ 42,620
Patents  19 years  8,753  (2,597)  6,156  8,515  (2,875)  5,640
Developed technology  10 years  60,665  (25,923)  34,742  68,390  (30,741)  37,649
Customer relationships  7 years  50,676  (26,588)  24,088  54,021  (31,042)  22,979

Total amortizable assets  169,277  (70,787)  98,490  191,578  (82,690)  108,888
Non-amortizable assets:
In-process R&D 533 — 533 533 — 533
Trademarks  28,585  —  28,585  30,360  —  30,360

Total intangible assets $ 198,395 $ (70,787) $ 127,608 $ 222,471 $ (82,690) $ 139,781

Amortization expense related to intangible assets was $4.8 million and $4.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and
2022, respectively. For the nine months ended March 31, 2021 and 2022, amortization expense related to intangible assets was $15.1
million and $13.0 million, respectively.

At March 31, 2022, the estimated future amortization expense for intangible assets was as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year

2022 (remaining 3 months)     $ 4,779
2023  18,981
2024  21,448
2025  19,826
2026 13,979
Thereafter  29,875

Total $ 108,888

Software development costs for software products incurred before establishing technological feasibility are charged to operations.
Software development costs incurred after establishing technological feasibility are capitalized on a product-by-product basis until the
product is available for general release to customers at which time amortization begins. Annual amortization, charged to cost of goods
sold, is the amount computed using the ratio that current revenues for a product bear to the total current and anticipated future revenues
for that product. In the event that future revenues are not estimable, such costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining
estimated economic life of the product. Amortizable assets that have not yet begun to be amortized are included in Thereafter in the table
above. For the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2022, we capitalized software development costs in the amounts of $2.6 million
and $4.0 million, respectively. For the nine months ended March 31, 2021 and 2022, we capitalized software development costs in the
amounts of $9.1 million and $11.7 million, respectively.
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5. Contract Assets and Liabilities

We enter into contracts to sell products and provide services, and we recognize contract assets and liabilities that arise from these
transactions. We recognize revenue and corresponding accounts receivable according to ASC 606. When we recognize revenue in
advance of the point in time at which contracts give us the right to invoice a customer, we record this as unbilled revenue, which is
included in accounts receivable, net, on the consolidated balance sheets. We may also receive consideration, per the terms of a contract,
from customers prior to transferring control of goods to the customer. We record customer deposits as contract liabilities. Additionally,
we may receive payments, most typically under service and warranty contracts, at the onset of the contract and before services have been
performed. In such instances, we record a deferred revenue liability. We recognize these contract liabilities as sales after all revenue
recognition criteria are met.

The table below shows the balance of contract assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2021 and March 31, 2022, including the change
between the periods. There were no substantial non-current contract assets for the periods presented.

Contract Assets (in thousands)

    June 30,     March 31,          
    2021     2022     Change     % Change  

Unbilled revenue (included in accounts receivable, net) $ 40,853 $ 44,483 $ 3,630  9 %

Contract Liabilities (in thousands)

    June 30,     March 31,          
    2021     2022     Change     % Change

Advances from customers $ 38,463 $ 45,914 $ 7,451 19 %
Deferred revenue—current  32,689  32,465  (224) (1)%
Deferred revenue—long-term  14,898  19,813  4,915 33 %

Contract assets increased during the nine months ended March 31, 2022 primarily due to satisfaction of performance obligations for
aviation, cargo and vehicle inspection customers in our Security division which have not yet been billed. The overall increase in contract
liabilities was primarily due to receipt of upfront deposits from customers and deferred revenue from receipt of payments under service
and warranty contracts primarily in our Security division.

Remaining Performance Obligations. Remaining performance obligations related to ASC 606 represent the aggregate transaction price
allocated to performance obligations under an original contract with a term greater than one year which are fully or partially unsatisfied
at the end of the period. As of March 31, 2022, the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to remaining performance
obligations was approximately $372.8 million. We expect to recognize revenue on approximately 41% of the remaining performance
obligations over the next 12 months, and the remainder is expected to be recognized thereafter. During the nine months ended March 31,
2022, we recognized revenue of $53.3 million from contract liabilities existing at the beginning of the period.

Practical Expedients. In cases where we are responsible for shipping after the customer has obtained control of the goods, we have
elected to treat the shipping activities as fulfillment activities rather than as a separate performance obligation. Additionally, we have
elected to capitalize the cost to obtain a contract only if the period of amortization would be longer than one year. We only give
consideration to whether a customer agreement has a financing component if the period of time between transfer of goods and services
and customer payment is greater than one year.

6. Leases

The components of operating lease expense were as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended March 31,     Nine Months Ended March 31, 
    2021     2022     2021     2022

Operating lease cost $ 2,216 $ 2,704 $ 7,120 $ 7,354
Variable lease cost 280 263  723  650
Short-term lease cost 258 268  649  854

$ 2,754 $ 3,235 $ 8,492 $ 8,858
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Sale-leaseback Transaction. In March 2022, we completed a sale-leaseback transaction for our manufacturing facilities and corporate
headquarters in Hawthorne, California (the “Hawthorne Property”). We sold the Hawthorne Property for $32 million and recognized a
gain of $27.4 million. We also entered into a 6-year lease agreement for the Hawthorne Property commencing March 10, 2022 and
expiring on March 31, 2028, with two 5-year renewal options. As of March 31, 2022, we recorded a right-of-use asset and lease liability
for $5.7 million.

Supplemental disclosures related to operating leases were as follows (in thousands):

    Balance Sheet Category     June 30, 2021     March 31, 2022
Operating lease ROU assets, net  Other assets $ 23,439 $ 36,718

Operating lease liabilities, current portion  
Other accrued expenses and current

liabilities $ 7,499 $ 8,977

Operating lease liabilities, long-term  Other long-term liabilities  16,317  28,521
Total operating lease liabilities $ 23,816 $ 37,498

Weighted average remaining lease term   5.1 years
Weighted average discount rate   3.5 %

Supplemental cash flow information related to operating leases was as follows (in thousands):

    Nine Months Ended March 31, 
    2021     2022

Cash paid for operating lease liabilities $ 7,773 $ 7,549
ROU assets obtained in exchange for new lease obligations  1,810  9,519

Maturities of operating lease liabilities at March 31, 2022 were as follows (in thousands):

    March 31, 2022
Less than one year $ 10,101
1 – 2 years  9,383
2 – 3 years  7,438
3 – 4 years  6,016
4 – 5 years  5,437
Thereafter  2,314

 40,689
Less: imputed interest  (3,191)
Total lease liabilities $ 37,498

7. Impairment, Restructuring and Other Charges

We endeavor to align our global capacity and infrastructure with demand by our customers as well as fully integrate acquisitions and
thereby improve operational efficiency.

During the three months ended March 31, 2022, we recognized $1.5 million in restructuring and other charges, which included $0.8
million in legal charges primarily related to class action litigation and government investigations, $0.4 million for employee terminations,
and $0.3 million in acquisition related costs. During the three months ended March 31, 2021, we recognized a total net benefit of ($0.3)
million which included a net benefit of ($0.7) million for reimbursements from our insurance carriers for covered legal charges. We also
incurred charges of $0.2 million for employee terminations and $0.2 million for facility closure and operational efficiency activities.
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During the nine months ended March 31, 2022, we recognized $4.8 million in restructuring and other charges, which included $1.0
million in employee terminations, $0.3 million in acquisition related costs, and $3.5 million in legal charges primarily related to class
action litigation and government investigations. During the nine months ended March 31, 2021, we incurred a total net expense of $7.9
million which included $7.2 million for exit activities associated with an expired turnkey contract in Mexico. Such exit costs included
$2.8 million for employee terminations, $1.1 million for facility closure and other exit costs, direct transaction costs of $2.7 million, and
$0.6 million for right-of-use asset impairment for a leased facility. We also incurred costs of $1.6 million for other employee terminations
and facility closure costs for operational efficiency activities and $0.3 million for acquisition-related activities.We also recognized a net
benefit of ($1.2) million for reimbursements from our insurance carriers for covered legal charges.

The following tables summarize impairment, restructuring and other charges (benefits), net for the periods set forth below (in thousands):

Three Months Ended March 31, 2021
Optoelectronics and

Healthcare Manufacturing
    Security Division    Division     Division     Corporate     Total

Acquisition-related costs $ 22 $ — $ — $ — $ 22
Employee termination costs 213 — — — 213
Facility closures/consolidation costs  166  —  —  —  166
Legal costs (recoveries), net  —  —  —  (686)  (686)

Total expensed (benefit), net $ 401 $ — $ — $ (686) $ (285)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2022
Optoelectronics and

Healthcare Manufacturing
    Security Division    Division     Division     Corporate     Total

Acquisition-related costs $ 221 $ — $ — $ 56 $ 277
Employee termination costs 409 — — — 409
Facility closures/consolidation 3 — — — 3
Legal costs, net  —  —  —  780  780

Total expensed $ 633 $ — $ — $ 836 $ 1,469

Nine Months Ended March 31, 2021
            Optoelectronics and         

Healthcare Manufacturing
    Security Division    Division     Division     Corporate     Total

Impairment charges $ 552 $ — $ — $ — $ 552
Acquisition-related costs 250 27 — — 277
Employee termination costs 4,010 —     146 — 4,156
Mexico transaction costs 2,691 — — — 2,691
Facility closures/consolidation costs  1,420  —  —  —  1,420
Legal costs (recoveries), net  —  —  —  (1,184)  (1,184)

Total expensed (benefit), net $ 8,923 $ 27 $ 146 $ (1,184) $ 7,912

Nine Months Ended March 31, 2022
            Optoelectronics and         

Healthcare Manufacturing
Security Division Division Division Corporate Total

Acquisition-related costs $ 221 $ — $ — $ 56 $ 277
Employee termination costs 1,077 — — — 1,077
Facility closures/consolidation  (37)  —  —  —  (37)
Legal costs, net  —  —  —  3,493  3,493

Total expensed $ 1,261 $ — $ — $ 3,549 $ 4,810
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The accrued liability for restructuring and other charges is included in other accrued expenses and current liabilities in the condensed
consolidated balance sheets. The changes in the accrued liability for restructuring and other charges for the nine-month period ended
March 31, 2022 were as follows (in thousands):

Facility
Acquisition- Employee Closure/ Legal

Related Termination Consolidation Costs and
    Costs     Costs     Cost     Settlements     Total

Balance as of June 30, 2021 $ — $ 250 $ 386 $ 2,772 $ 3,408
Restructuring and other charges (benefits), net  277  1,077  (37)  3,493  4,810
Payments, adjustments and reimbursements, net  (119)  (1,160)  (241)  (3,263)  (4,783)
Balance as of March 31, 2022 $ 158 $ 167 $ 108 $ 3,002 $ 3,435

8. Borrowings

Revolving Credit Facility

In December 2021, we entered into an amendment to the senior secured credit facility that increased the aggregate amount available to
borrow from $535 million to $750 million. The amended facility matures in December 2026 and is comprised of a $600 million
revolving credit facility and a $150 million delayed draw term loan. The term loan is available to us to draw through September 1, 2022.
The revolving credit facility includes a $300 million sub-limit for letters of credit. Under certain circumstances and subject to certain
conditions, we have the ability to increase the revolving credit facility by the greater of $250 million or such amount as would not cause
our secured leverage ratio to exceed a specified level. Borrowings under the amended facility bore interest at LIBOR plus a margin of
1.0% as of March 31, 2022 (which margin can range from 1.0% to 1.75% based on our consolidated net leverage ratio as defined in the
credit facility). The LIBOR index is expected to be phased out over time. The terms of our credit facility allow for replacement when that
occurs. Letters of credit reduce the amount available to borrow under the credit facility by their face value amount. The unused portion of
the facility bore a commitment fee of 0.10% as of March 31, 2022 (which fee can range from 0.10% to 0.25% based on our consolidated
net leverage ratio as defined in the credit facility). Our borrowings under the credit agreement are guaranteed by certain of our U.S.-
based subsidiaries and are secured by substantially all of our assets and substantially all the assets of certain of our subsidiaries. The
credit facility contains various representations and warranties, affirmative, negative and financial covenants and events of default. As of
March 31, 2022, there were $73.0 million of borrowings outstanding under the revolving credit facility, $85.2 million outstanding under
the letters of credit sub-facility, and $50 million outstanding under the term loan. As of March 31, 2022, the amount available to borrow
under the revolving credit facility was $441.8 million and the amount available to borrow under the term loan was $100 million. Loan
amounts under the revolving credit facility may be borrowed, repaid and re-borrowed during the term. The principal amount of each loan
is due and payable in full on the maturity date. We have the right to repay each loan in whole or in part from time to time without penalty.
It is our practice to routinely borrow and repay several times per year under the revolving facility and therefore, borrowings under the
revolving credit facility are included in current liabilities. As of March 31, 2022, we were in compliance with all financial covenants
under this credit facility.

1.25% Convertible Senior Notes (“Notes”) Due 2022

In February 2017, we issued $287.5 million of the Notes in a private offering. The Notes are governed by an indenture dated February
22, 2017. The maturity for the payment of principal is September 1, 2022. The Notes bear interest at the rate of 1.25% and are payable in
cash semiannually in arrears on each March 1 and September 1. The Notes are senior unsecured obligations and rank senior in right of
payment to any of our indebtedness that is expressly subordinated in right of payment to the Notes; equal in right of payment to any of
our unsecured indebtedness that is not so subordinated; effectively junior in right of payment to any of our secured indebtedness to the
extent of the value of the assets securing such indebtedness; and structurally junior to all indebtedness and other liabilities (including
trade payables) of our subsidiaries as well as any of our existing and future indebtedness that may be guaranteed by our subsidiaries to
the extent of such guarantees (including the guarantees of certain of our subsidiaries under our existing credit facility).

The Notes are convertible at any time at an initial conversion rate of 9.3056 per $1,000 principal amount of the Notes, which is equal to
an initial conversion price of approximately $107.46 per share or a 38.5% premium to our stock price at the time of the issuance. The
conversion rate is subject to adjustment upon certain events. Upon conversion, the original indenture provided that the Notes may be
settled, at our election, in cash or shares of our common stock or a combination of cash and shares of our common stock. We have
irrevocably elected a combination settlement method to satisfy the conversion obligation, which provides for us to settle the principal
amount of the Notes in cash and to settle the excess conversion value, if any, in shares of common stock and cash in lieu of fractional
shares.



Table of Contents

19

We may redeem the Notes if the last reported sale price of our common stock has been at least 130% of the conversion price then in
effect for at least 20 trading days (whether or not consecutive) during any period of 30 consecutive trading days. If we undergo a
fundamental change, as defined in the indenture for the Notes, subject to certain conditions, holders of the Notes may require us to
repurchase all or part of the Notes for cash at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes to be repurchased, plus any
accrued and unpaid interest to, but excluding, the fundamental change repurchase date. The occurrence of a fundamental change will also
result in the Notes becoming immediately convertible. Since the last reported sales price of our common stock did not exceed 130% of
the conversion price for at least 20 trading days within any applicable period of 30 consecutive trading days, the Notes are not yet
convertible.

Pursuant to ASC 470-20, we originally allocated the $287.5 million gross proceeds of the Notes between liability and equity
components. The initial $242.4 million liability component was determined based on the fair value of similar debt instruments excluding
the conversion feature for similar terms and priced on the same day the Notes were issued. The initial $45.1 million equity component
represented the debt discount and was calculated as the difference between the fair value of the debt and the gross proceeds of the Notes.
Issuance costs of $7.7 million were allocated between debt ($6.5 million) and equity ($1.2 million) components with the portion
allocated to the debt presented as an offset against long-term debt in the consolidated balance sheet and was being amortized as interest
expense over the life of the Notes using the effective interest method. Total interest expense recognized for the three and nine months
ended March 31, 2021 related to the Notes was $3.3 million and $10.0 million, respectively, which consisted of $0.9 million and $2.7
million of contractual interest expense, $2.2 million and $6.4 million of debt discount amortization and $0.3 million and $0.9 million of
amortization of debt issuance costs.

For the three and nine months ended March 31, 2022, the total interest expense was $1.2 million and $3.7 million, respectively, which
consisted of $0.9 million and $2.7 million of contractual interest expense and $0.3 million and $1.0 million of amortization of debt
issuance costs. As of July 1, 2021, the remaining unamortized debt discount of $10.5 million was eliminated upon the adoption of ASU
2020-06. The unamortized debt issuance cost of $1.4 million and $0.6 million as of June 30, 2021 and March 31, 2022, respectively, is
amortized on a straight-line basis, which approximates the effective interest method, over the life of the Notes.

In August 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-06, Accounting for Convertible Instruments and Contracts in an Entity’s Own Equity.
Under ASU 2020-06, the embedded conversion features are no longer separated from the host contract for convertible instruments with
conversion features that are not required to be accounted for as derivatives under Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging, or that do not
result in substantial premiums accounted for as paid-in capital. Consequently, a convertible debt instrument will be accounted for as a
single liability measured at its amortized cost, as long as no other features require bifurcation and recognition as derivatives. By
removing those separation models, the effective interest rate of convertible debt instruments typically will be closer to the coupon interest
rate. We early adopted the new guidance on July 1, 2021 using the modified retrospective approach and recorded a $19 million increase
to retained earnings and a reduction of $27 million in common stock as if there had been no equity component. Additionally, we recorded
an increase to the convertible notes balance by $10 million.

During the three months ended March 31, 2022, we repurchased and cancelled approximately $40.2 million of principal value of the
Notes. We recognized a loss on debt extinguishment of $0.1 million during the quarter ended March 31, 2022, representing the write-off
of unamortized debt issuance costs related to the portion of the Notes repurchased.

Other Borrowings

Several of our foreign subsidiaries maintain bank lines of credit, denominated in local currencies and U.S. dollars, primarily for the
issuance of letters of credit. As of March 31, 2022, $61.9 million was outstanding under these letter-of-credit facilities. As of March 31,
2022, the total amount available under these credit facilities was $11.5 million.
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Long-term debt consisted of the following (in thousands):

    June 30, 2021     March 31, 2022
1.25% convertible notes due September 1, 2022:

Principal amount $ 287,500 $ 247,302
Unamortized discount (10,494) —
Unamortized debt issuance costs (1,372) (500)

275,634 246,802
Term loan — 50,000
Other long-term debt  1,633  1,221

 277,267  298,023
Less current portion of long-term debt  (846)  (249,315)
Long-term portion of debt $ 276,421 $ 48,708

9. Stockholders’ Equity

Stock-based Compensation

As of March 31, 2022, we maintained the Amended and Restated 2012 Incentive Award Plan (the “OSI Plan”) as a stock-based employee
compensation plan.

We recorded stock-based compensation expense in the consolidated statements of operations as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended March 31,     Nine Months Ended March 31, 
    2021     2022     2021     2022

Cost of goods sold $ 199 $ 205 $ 571 $ 616
Selling, general and administrative 7,223 6,567  18,391 19,977
Research and development 143 126  424 393

Stock-based compensation expense $ 7,565 $ 6,898 $ 19,386 $ 20,986

As of March 31, 2022, total unrecognized compensation cost related to share-based compensation grants under the OSI Plan were
estimated at $0.7 million for stock options and $20.3 million for restricted stock units (“RSUs”). We expect to recognize these costs over
a weighted average period of 2.2 years with respect to the stock options and 1.8 years with respect to the RSUs.

The following summarizes stock option activity during the nine months ended March 31, 2022:

Weighted
Average Weighted-Average Aggregate

Number of Exercise Remaining Contractual Intrinsic Value
    Options     Price     Term     (in thousands)

Outstanding at June 30, 2021  255,220  $ 50.24  
Granted  22,954 96.38
Exercised  (164,612) 34.61
Expired or forfeited  (834) 71.83

Outstanding at March 31, 2022  112,728 82.30 6.4 years $ 816
Exercisable at March 31, 2022 72,371 76.69  4.9 years 780
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The following summarizes RSU award activity during the nine months ended March 31, 2022:

Weighted-
Average

    Shares     Fair Value
Nonvested at June 30, 2021  435,925 $ 84.16

Granted  334,435 90.31
Vested  (335,099) 82.66
Forfeited  (4,542) 84.21

Nonvested at March 31, 2022  430,719 $ 90.11

In December 2020, our shareholders authorized an increase of 1.65 million shares for the OSI Plan resulting in a maximum pool of 7.1
million shares. As of March 31, 2022, there were approximately 1.4 million shares available for grant under the OSI Plan. Under the
terms of the OSI Plan, RSUs and restricted stock granted from the pool of shares available for grant reduce the pool by 1.87 shares for
each award granted. RSUs and restricted stock forfeited and returned to the pool of shares available for grant increase the pool by 1.87
shares for each award forfeited.

We granted 136,242 and 96,620 performance-based RSUs during the nine months ended March 31, 2021 and 2022, respectively. These
performance based RSU awards are contingent on the achievement of certain performance metrics. The payout related to these awards
can range from zero to 376% of the original number of shares or units awarded. Compensation cost associated with these performance
based RSUs are recognized based on the estimated number of shares that we ultimately expect will vest. If the estimated number of
shares to vest is revised in the future, then stock-based compensation expense will be adjusted accordingly.

Stock Repurchase Program

Our Board of Directors has authorized a share repurchase program of up to 3,000,000 shares of common stock. This program does not
expire unless our Board of Directors acts to terminate the program. The timing and actual numbers of shares purchased depends on a
variety of factors, including stock price, general business and market conditions and other investment opportunities. Repurchases may be
made from time to time under the program through open-market purchases or privately-negotiated transactions at our discretion. Upon
repurchase, the shares are restored to the status of authorized but unissued shares and we record them in our consolidated financial
statements as a reduction in the number of shares of common stock issued and outstanding.

During the nine months ended March 31, 2022, we repurchased 1,117,258 shares of our common stock. As of March 31, 2022, there
were 1,430,737 shares remaining available for repurchase under the authorized repurchase program.

Dividends

We have not paid any cash dividends since the consummation of our initial public offering in 1997 and we do not currently intend to pay
any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Our Board of Directors will determine the payment of future cash dividends, if any. Certain
of our current bank credit facilities restrict the payment of cash dividends and future borrowings may contain similar restrictions.

10. Commitments and Contingencies

Acquisition-Related Contingent Obligations

Under the terms and conditions of the purchase agreements associated with certain acquisitions, we may be obligated to make additional
payments based on the achievement of certain sales or profitability milestones through the acquired operations. For agreements that
contain contingent consideration caps, the remaining maximum amount of such potential future payments is $52.4 million as of March
31, 2022.

We account for such contingent payments for acquisitions which occurred through the end of fiscal year 2009 as additions to the
purchase price of the acquired business. We made contingent payments relating to such acquisitions of $0.2 million and $0.9 million,
respectively, during the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021 and $0.3 million and $1.7 million, respectively, during the three
and nine months ended March 31,2022.
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For acquisitions completed after fiscal 2009, pursuant to ASC 805, the estimated fair value of these obligations is recorded as a liability
at the time of the acquisition with subsequent revisions recorded in Selling, general and administrative expense in the consolidated
financial statements. The estimated fair value measurements of contingent earnout obligations are primarily based on unobservable
inputs, which may include projected revenues, gross margins, operating income and the estimated probability of achieving the earnouts.

These projections and probabilities are used to estimate future contingent earnout payments, which are discounted back to present value
to compute contingent earnout liabilities. The following table provides a roll-forward from June 30, 2021 to March 31, 2022 of the
contingent consideration liability, which is included in other accrued expenses and current liabilities and other long-term liabilities in our
consolidated balance sheets (in thousands):

Beginning fair value, June 30, 2021     $ 19,431
Addition of contingent earnout obligations 14,609
Foreign currency translation adjustment (243)
Changes in fair value for contingent earnout obligations  (5,363)
Payments on contingent earnout obligations  (168)
Ending fair value, March 31, 2022 $ 28,266

Environmental Contingencies

We are subject to various environmental laws. We often conduct environmental investigations at our manufacturing facilities in North
America, Asia-Pacific, and Europe, and, to the extent practicable, on all new properties in order to identify, as of the date of such
investigation, potential areas of environmental concern related to past and present activities or from nearby operations. In certain cases,
we have conducted further environmental assessments consisting of soil and groundwater testing and other investigations deemed
appropriate by independent environmental consultants.

We have not accrued for loss contingencies relating to environmental matters because we believe that, although unfavorable outcomes
are possible, they are not considered by our management to be probable and reasonably estimable. If one or more of these environmental
matters are resolved in a manner adverse to us, the impact on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flow could
be material.

Indemnifications and Certain Employment-Related Contingencies

In the normal course of business, we have agreed to indemnify certain parties with respect to certain matters. We have agreed to hold
certain parties harmless against losses arising from breaches of representations, warranties or covenants, or intellectual property
infringement or other claims made by third parties. These agreements may limit the time within which an indemnification claim can be
made and the amount of the claim. In addition, we have entered into indemnification agreements with our directors and certain of our
officers. It is not possible to determine the maximum potential liability amount under these indemnification agreements due to the limited
history of prior indemnification claims and the unique facts and circumstances involved in each particular agreement. We have not
recorded any liability for costs related to contingent indemnification obligations as of March 31, 2022.

On December 31, 2017, we and Deepak Chopra, our Chief Executive Officer, entered into an amendment to Mr. Chopra’s employment
agreement that, among other things, provides for a $13.5 million bonus payment to Mr. Chopra on or within 45 days of January 1, 2024
contingent upon Mr. Chopra’s continued employment with us through that date, subject to accelerated payout terms in the event of Mr.
Chopra’s death or disability. The bonus is recorded in the financial statements over the remaining term of the employment agreement and
is included in other long-term liabilities.

Product Warranties

We offer our customers warranties on many of the products that we sell. These warranties typically provide for repairs and maintenance
of the products if problems arise during a specified time period after original shipment. Concurrent with the sale of products, we record a
provision for estimated warranty expenses with a corresponding increase in cost of goods sold. We periodically adjust this provision
based on historical experience and anticipated expenses. We charge actual expenses of repairs under warranty, including parts and labor,
to this provision when incurred. The current obligation for warranty provision is included in other accrued expenses and current
liabilities and the noncurrent portion is included in other long-term liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.
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The following table presents changes in warranty provisions (in thousands):

Nine Months Ended March 31, 
    2021     2022

Balance at beginning of period $ 20,825 $ 19,736
Additions 3,759 2,292
Reductions for warranty repair costs and adjustments  (4,975)  (7,191)

Balance at end of period $ 19,609 $ 14,837

Legal Proceedings

In December 2017, a short seller released a report regarding our compliance with the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. Following that
report, we and certain of our executive officers have been named as defendants in several lawsuits in the United States District Court for
the Central District of California (“District Court”) that were filed in December 2017 and February 2018. Each of the complaints closely
tracks the allegations set forth in the short seller’s report. All of the actions, which were consolidated by the District Court in March 2018
in an action captioned Arkansas Teacher Retirement System et al. v. OSI Systems, Inc. et al., No. 17 cv 08841, allege violations of
Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Exchange Act, relating to certain of our public statements and filings with the SEC, and seek damages
and other relief based upon the allegations in the complaints. Although we believe that the actions are without merit, because of the costs
and inherent uncertainty in litigation, we reached an agreement to settle the Arkansas Teacher Retirement Systems matter for $12.5
million, which was preliminarily approved by the court on December 30, 2021 and paid during the quarter ended March 31, 2022. We
were reimbursed by insurance $4.5 million of the settlement amount during the quarter ended March 31, 2022 and were reimbursed the
remaining $8.0 million in April 2022. As of March 31, 2022, the $8.0 million was included as a receivable in Prepaid expenses and other
current assets.

In April 2018 and March 2019, two shareholder derivative complaints were filed purportedly on behalf of the Company against certain
members of our Board of Directors (as individual defendants), a former member of our Board of Directors, and a member of
management. The derivative actions, which were consolidated by the District Court in November 2019 in an action captioned Riley v.
Chopra, et al. No. 18 CV 03371, allege, among other things, breach of fiduciary duties relating to the allegations contained in the above-
mentioned short seller report and seek damages, restitution, injunctive relief, attorneys’ and experts’ fees, costs, expenses, and other
unspecified relief. The derivative actions have been dismissed, and the dismissal was affirmed by the 9th Circuit Court of Appeal.

We are involved in various other claims and legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. In our opinion after consultation
with legal counsel, the ultimate disposition of such proceedings is not likely to have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows. We have not accrued for loss contingencies relating to any such matters because we believe
that, although unfavorable outcomes in the proceedings are possible, they are not considered by management to be probable and
reasonably estimable. If one or more of these matters are resolved in a manner adverse to our company, the impact on our business,
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows could be material.

11. Income Taxes

The determination of the annual effective tax rate is based upon a number of significant estimates and judgments, including the estimated
annual pretax income in each tax jurisdiction in which we operate and the development of tax planning strategies during the year. In
addition, as a global commercial enterprise, our tax expense can be impacted by changes in tax rates or laws, the finalization of tax audits
and reviews and other factors that cannot be predicted with certainty. As such, there can be significant volatility in interim tax provisions.

The effective tax rates for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 were 20.1% and 33.7%, respectively. During the three
month period ended March 31, 2022, we recognized a net discrete tax benefit of $0.2 million related to equity-based compensation under
ASU 2016-09 and changes in prior year tax estimates. During the three months ended March 31, 2021, we recognized a net discrete tax
expense of $2.2 million for changes in prior year tax estimates of $2.4 million, offset by a discrete tax benefit of ($0.2) million for
equity-based compensation under ASU 2016-09.

The effective tax rate for the nine months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 was 20.8% and 30.1%, respectively. During the nine months
ended March 31, 2022, we recognized a net discrete tax benefit of $2.0 million related to equity-based compensation under ASU 2016-
09. During the nine months ended March 31, 2021, we recognized a net discrete tax expense of $2.3 million for changes in prior year tax
estimates of $2.8 million, offset by a ($0.5) million tax benefit from equity-based compensation under ASU 2016-09.
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12. Segment Information

We have determined that we operate in three identifiable industry segments: (a) security and inspection systems (Security division), (b)
medical monitoring and diagnostic cardiology systems (Healthcare division) and (c) optoelectronic devices and manufacturing
(Optoelectronics and Manufacturing division). We also have a corporate segment (Corporate) that includes executive compensation and
certain other general and administrative expenses, expenses related to stock issuances and legal, audit and other professional service fees
not allocated to industry segments. Both the Security and Healthcare divisions comprise primarily end-product businesses, whereas the
Optoelectronics and Manufacturing division primarily supplies components and subsystems to external OEM customers, as well as to the
Security and Healthcare divisions. Sales between divisions are at transfer prices that approximate market values. All other accounting
policies of the segments are the same as described in Note 1, Basis of Presentation.

The following tables present our results of operations and identifiable assets by industry segment (in thousands):

Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31, 
    2021     2022     2021     2022

Revenues (1) —by Segment:
Security division $ 151,409 $ 158,644 $ 431,420 $ 454,079
Healthcare division 54,023 52,178  160,421  155,191
Optoelectronics and Manufacturing division, including intersegment

revenues 90,278 92,122  257,713  275,917
Intersegment revenues elimination (11,923) (12,467)  (34,850)  (38,772)

Total $ 283,787 $ 290,477 $ 814,704 $ 846,415

Income (loss) from operations —by Segment:
Security division $ 23,969 $ 20,559 $ 52,651 $ 60,323
Healthcare division 7,333 7,480  25,640  20,430
Optoelectronics and Manufacturing division 10,484 11,177  29,638  34,342
Corporate (9,078) (10,729)  (25,895)  (32,855)
Intersegment eliminations (242) (61)  (517)  (48)

Total $ 32,466 $ 28,426 $ 81,517 $ 82,192

June 30, March 31, 
    2021     2022

Assets (2) —by Segment:
Security division $ 798,192 $ 847,050
Healthcare division  220,411  232,850
Optoelectronics and Manufacturing division  282,039  299,059
Corporate  121,293  115,531
Eliminations (3)  (37,568)  (35,399)

Total $ 1,384,367 $ 1,459,091

(1) For each of the three and nine month periods ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2022, no customer accounted for greater than
10% of total net revenues.

(2) As of June 30, 2021 and March 31, 2022, no customer accounted for greater than 10% of accounts receivable.
(3) Eliminations in assets reflect the amount of inter-segment profits in inventory and inter-segment ROU assets under ASC 842 as of

the balance sheet date. Such inter-segment profit will be realized when inventory is shipped to the external customers of the Security
and Healthcare divisions.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

In this report, “OSI”, the “Company”, “we”, “us”, “our” and similar terms refer to OSI Systems, Inc. together with our wholly-owned
subsidiaries.

This management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition as of March 31, 2022 and results of operations for the three and nine
months ended March 31, 2022 should be read in conjunction with management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and
results of operations included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 filed with the SEC.

Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, Section
27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange
Act”). Forward-looking statements relate to our current expectations, beliefs, and projections concerning matters that are not historical
facts. Words such as “project,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “plan,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,” “should,” “will,” “would,” and similar
words and expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements include, without limitation,
information provided regarding impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the Russia-Ukraine conflict. Forward-looking statements are not
guarantees of future performance and involve uncertainties, risks, assumptions and contingencies, many of which are outside our
control. Assumptions upon which our forward-looking statements are based could prove to be inaccurate, and actual results may differ
materially from those expressed in or implied by such forward-looking statements. Important factors that could cause our actual results
to differ materially from those expectations are disclosed in this report, our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2021 (including Part I, Item 1, “Business,” Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factors” and Part II, Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”) and other documents filed by us from time to time with the SEC. Such
factors, of course, do not include all factors that might affect our business and financial condition. We could be exposed to a variety of
negative consequences as a result of delays related to the award of domestic and international contracts; failure to secure the renewal of
key customer contracts; delays in customer programs; delays in revenue recognition related to the timing of customer acceptance;
changes in domestic and foreign government spending, budgetary, procurement and trade policies adverse to our businesses; the impact
of the Russia-Ukraine conflict, including the potential for broader economic disruption; global economic uncertainty; impacts on our
business related to or resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic such as material delays and cancellations of orders or deliveries thereon,
supply chain disruptions, plant closures, or other adverse impacts on our ability to execute business plans; unfavorable currency
exchange rate fluctuations; effect of changes in tax legislation; market acceptance of our new and existing technologies, products and
services; our ability to win new business and convert any orders received to sales within the same fiscal year; enforcement actions in
respect of any noncompliance with laws and regulations including export control and environmental regulations and the matters that are
the subject of some or all of our investigations and compliance reviews, contract and regulatory compliance matters, and actions, which
if brought, could result in judgments, settlements, fines, injunctions, debarment or penalties; and other risks and uncertainties, including
but not limited to those detailed herein and from time to time in our other SEC filings, which could have a material and adverse impact
on our business, financial condition and results of operation. Many of the referenced risks could be amplified by the magnitude and
duration of the COVID-19 pandemic. All forward-looking statements contained in this report are qualified in their entirety by this
statement. Moreover, we operate in a very competitive and rapidly changing environment. New risks emerge from time to time. It is not
possible for our management to predict all risks, nor can we assess the impact of all factors on our business or the extent to which any
factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements we
may make. In light of these risks, uncertainties, and assumptions, the future events and trends discussed in this Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q may not occur, and actual results could differ materially and adversely from those anticipated or implied in the forward-looking
statements. Investors should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements as a prediction of actual results. We undertake no
obligation other than as may be required under securities laws to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a
result of new information, future events or otherwise.

Executive Summary

We are a vertically integrated designer and manufacturer of specialized electronic systems and components for critical applications. We
sell our products and provide related services in diversified markets, including homeland security, healthcare, defense and aerospace. We
have three operating divisions: (a) Security, providing security and inspection systems and turnkey security screening solutions; (b)
Healthcare, providing patient monitoring, diagnostic cardiology and connected care systems and associated accessories; and (c)
Optoelectronics and Manufacturing, providing specialized electronic components for our Security and Healthcare divisions, as well as to
third parties for applications in the defense and aerospace markets, among others.
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Security Division. Through our Security division, we provide security screening products and services globally, as well as turnkey
security screening solutions. These products and services are used to inspect baggage, parcels, cargo, people, vehicles and other objects
for weapons, explosives, drugs, radioactive and nuclear materials and other contraband. Revenues from our Security division accounted
for 53% and 54% of our total consolidated revenues for the nine months ended March 31, 2021 and 2022, respectively.

Healthcare Division. Through our Healthcare division, we design, manufacture, market and service patient monitoring, diagnostic
cardiology and connected care systems globally for sale primarily to hospitals and medical centers. Our products monitor patients in
critical, emergency and perioperative care areas of the hospital and provide information, through wired and wireless networks, to
physicians and nurses who may be at the patient’s bedside, in another area of the hospital or even outside the hospital. Revenues from our
Healthcare division accounted for 20% and 18% of our total consolidated revenues for the nine months ended March 31, 2021 and 2022,
respectively.

Optoelectronics and Manufacturing Division. Through our Optoelectronics and Manufacturing division, we design, manufacture and
market optoelectronic devices and flex circuits and provide electronics manufacturing services globally for use in a broad range of
applications, including aerospace and defense electronics, security and inspection systems, medical imaging and diagnostics,
telecommunications, office automation, computer peripherals, industrial automation and consumer products. We provide our
optoelectronic devices and electronics manufacturing services to OEM customers and to our own Security and Healthcare divisions.
Revenues from external customers in our Optoelectronics and Manufacturing division accounted for 27% and 28% of our total
consolidated revenues for the nine months ended March 31, 2021 and 2022, respectively.

Trends and Uncertainties

The following is a discussion of certain trends and uncertainties that we believe have influenced, and may continue to influence, our
results of operations.

Coronavirus Pandemic. The coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) pandemic, including the emergence of new variants, has
dramatically impacted the global health and economic environment, with millions of confirmed cases, business slowdowns and
shutdowns, and market volatility. The COVID-19 pandemic has caused, and is likely to continue to cause, significant economic
disruptions and has impacted, and is expected to continue to impact, our operations and the operations of our suppliers, logistics
providers and customers as a result of quarantines, facility closures and travel and logistics restrictions. Our ability to continue to operate
without significant negative impacts will in part depend on our ability to protect our employees and our supply chain and to keep our
manufacturing facilities open and operating effectively. We have endeavored to implement government and health authority
recommendations to protect our employees worldwide including with respect to vaccine administration. While we do not expect these
pandemic-related impacts to be long-term, there is substantial uncertainty regarding the duration, scope, and ultimate impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic. During the early stages of the pandemic and continuing to a lesser extent throughout the duration of the pandemic,
our Healthcare division experienced increased demand for certain products as a result of COVID-19. In our Security division, throughout
the pandemic, receipt of certain orders has been delayed, most notably with respect to our aviation and cargo products, and our revenues
have been adversely impacted as a result of the pandemic. As many customers of our Security division continue to be impacted by the
pandemic, we have received and could receive further requests to delay deliveries of equipment and modify service arrangements or the
scheduling of factory or site acceptance tests, which has impacted, and could further impact, timing of revenue recognition. In addition,
as a result of COVID-19 related government regulations, certain of our global manufacturing facilities have had to limit operations and
might have to limit operations in the future. While we have been able to broadly maintain our operations, we experienced some
disruption in our supply chain in certain markets due primarily to materials shortages, longer lead times on deliveries and transportation
constraints. If these business interruptions resulting from COVID-19 were to be prolonged or expanded in scope, our business, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows would be materially and adversely impacted. We intend to continue to actively monitor
the situation and may take further actions that alter our business operations as may be required by federal, state or local authorities or that
we determine are in our best interests and the best interests of our employees, suppliers and customers.
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Global Economic Considerations. Our products and services are sold in numerous countries worldwide, with a large percentage of our
sales generated outside the United States. Therefore, we are exposed to and impacted by global macroeconomic factors, U.S. and foreign
government policies and foreign exchange fluctuations. Global economic conditions continue to be highly volatile due to the COVID-19
pandemic, resulting in market size contractions in certain countries due to economic slowdowns and government restrictions on
movement. In addition to the COVID-19 pandemic, these other global macroeconomic factors, coupled with the U.S. political climate
and political unrest internationally, have created uncertainty and impacted demand for certain of our products and services. Also, the
invasion of Ukraine by Russia and the sanctions imposed in response to this conflict have increased global economic and political
uncertainty. While the impact of these factors remains uncertain, we will continue to evaluate the extent to which these factors will
impact our business, financial condition or results of operations. We do not know how long this uncertainty will continue. These factors
could have a material negative effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Global Trade. In addition to the COVID-19 pandemic, the current domestic and international political environment, including in relation
to recent and further potential changes by the U.S. and other countries in policies on global trade and tariffs, have resulted in uncertainty
surrounding the future state of the global economy and global trade. This uncertainty is exacerbated by sanctions imposed by the U.S.
government against certain businesses and individuals in select countries. Continued or increased uncertainty regarding global trade due
to these or other factors may require us to modify our current business practices and could have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and financial condition.

Healthcare Considerations. As described above, our Healthcare division experienced some increased demand for its patient monitoring
products as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic during the earlier stages of the pandemic that has continued to a lesser extent throughout
the duration of the pandemic. Increased healthcare capital purchases made in prior periods may result in fewer capital purchases in
subsequent periods. The pandemic may also impact our ability to manufacture product needed to timely fill orders if we experience
supply chain disruptions or need to close any manufacturing facility due to employee COVID-19 cases or local government regulations.

European Union Threat Detection Standards. The EU has implemented regulations for all airports within the EU that use explosive
detection systems to have hold baggage screening systems that are compliant with the European Civil Aviation Conference (ECAC)
Standard 3. The deadline for compliance with this mandate was initially set for September 2020. Given the uncertainty surrounding the
COVID-19 pandemic, the EU revised the regulations, and the date by which airports using explosive detection systems for hold baggage
screening must meet Standard 3 has been changed to March 2024, with certain larger airports required to meet earlier installation dates.
Our Security division’s real time tomography (RTT) product has passed the ECAC explosive detection system Standard 3 threat
detection requirement.

Government Policies. Our results of operations and cash flows could be materially affected by changes in U.S. or foreign government
legislative, regulatory or enforcement policies, including U.S. and foreign government policies to manage the COVID-19 pandemic, such
as travel restrictions or site closures.

Changes in Costs and Supply Chain Disruptions. Our costs are subject to fluctuations, particularly due to changes in raw material,
component, and logistics costs. Our manufacturing and supply chain operations, including freight and shipping activities, have been and
may continue to be impacted by increased vendor costs as well as the current global supply chain bottleneck. Specifically, we are
impacted by the global shortage of electronic components and other materials needed for production and freight availability. We expect
continued disruptions in obtaining material and freight availability as the world economies react to and recover from supply chain
shortages. This increased cost environment has been exacerbated by the COVID-19 pandemic. Further, in February 2022, Russian forces
invaded Ukraine, and in response, the member countries of NATO initiated a variety of sanctions and export controls targeting Russia
and associated entities, which has also disrupted our ability to obtain material and freight availability. Although we strive to implement,
achieve, and sustain cost containment measures, including supply chain optimization and general overhead and workforce optimization,
if we are unable to mitigate the impact of increased costs through pricing or other actions, there could be a negative impact on our
business, results of operations, and financial condition.

Russia's Invasion of Ukraine. The invasion of Ukraine by Russia and the sanctions imposed in response to this conflict have increased
global economic and political uncertainty. We have certain research and development activities within Ukraine for our Healthcare
division which have been somewhat impacted.
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Results of Operations for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2021 (Q3 Fiscal 2021) Compared to the Three Months Ended
March 31, 2022 (Q3 Fiscal 2022) (amounts in millions)

Net Revenues

The table below and the discussion that follows are based upon the way in which we analyze our business. See Note 12 to the condensed
consolidated financial statements for additional information about our business segments.

    Q3     % of     Q3     % of          
    Fiscal 2021    Net Revenues    Fiscal 2022    Net Revenues    $Change    % Change  

Security  $  151.4   53 %  $  158.6   54 %  $  7.2   4.8 %
Healthcare  54.0   19 52.2   18  (1.8)  (3.3)
Optoelectronics and Manufacturing 78.4   28 79.7   28 1.3   1.7

Total net revenues  $  283.8   100 %  $  290.5   100 %  $  6.7   2.4 %

Revenues for the Security division during the three months ended March 31, 2022 increased year-over-year due to an increase in product
and service revenues of approximately $5.4 million and $1.8 million, respectively.

Revenues for the Healthcare division during the three months ended March 31, 2022 decreased 3.3% year-over-year. While cardiology
sales increased by approximately $2.8 million and service, supplies and accessories sales increased by approximately $0.9 million,
patient monitoring sales decreased by approximately $5.5 million.

Revenues for the Optoelectronics and Manufacturing division during the three months ended March 31, 2022 increased year-over year as
a result of an increase in revenue in our optoelectronics business of approximately $2.3 million, offset by a reduction in revenue of
approximately $1.0 million in our contract manufacturing business.

Gross Profit

Q3 % of Q3 % of
    Fiscal 2021     Net Revenues     Fiscal 2022     Net Revenues

Gross profit $  104.0  36.7 % $  102.9      35.4 %

Gross profit is impacted by sales volume, productivity, and changes in overall manufacturing-related costs, such as raw materials and
component costs, warranty expense, provision for inventory, freight, and logistics. Our cost of goods sold increased year-over-year
primarily as a result of the mix of revenues and higher raw material and freight costs. Gross profit as a percentage of net revenues during
the quarter ended March 31, 2022 decreased on a year-over-year basis due to (i) a reduction in the Security division gross margins due to
a less favorable sales mix and increased component, freight and travel costs, and (ii) reduced revenues in our Healthcare division, which
carries the highest gross margin of our three divisions.

Operating Expenses

Q3     % of     Q3     % of         
Fiscal 2021 Net Revenues Fiscal 2022 Net Revenues $ Change % Change

Selling, general and administrative     $  57.9      20.4 % $  57.8      19.9 % $  (0.1)     (0.2) %
Research and development   13.9   4.9   15.1   5.2  1.2  8.6
Impairment, restructuring and other charges

(benefit), net   (0.3)  (0.1)   1.5   0.5  1.8  600.0

Total operating expenses $  71.5   25.2 % $  74.4   25.6 % $  2.9  4.0 %

Selling, general and administrative. Our significant selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses include employee
compensation, sales commissions, travel, professional services, marketing expenses, and depreciation and amortization expense. SG&A
expense for the three months ended March 31, 2022 was comparable to such expense in the same prior-year period and included
increased marketing expenses of $2.3 million offset by decreases in compensation expense of $1.0 million and other miscellaneous
expenses of $1.4 million.
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Research and development. Research and development (R&D) expenses include research related to new product development and
product enhancements. The increase in R&D expense during the three months ended March 31, 2022 compared to the same prior-year
period was primarily due to increases in compensation expense of approximately $1.0 million to support new product development
initiatives primarily in our Security and Healthcare divisions.

Impairment, restructuring and other charges. Impairment, restructuring and other charges generally consist of charges relating to
reductions in our workforce, facilities consolidation, impairment of assets, costs related to acquisition activity, legal charges and other
non-recurring charges. During the three months ended March 31, 2022, impairment, restructuring and other charges primarily consisted
of $0.8 million for legal charges, $0.4 million in charges for employee terminations, and $0.3 million in acquisition related costs. The net
benefit in the three months ended March 31, 2021 consisted of ($0.7) million benefit for net reimbursements from our insurance carriers
for covered legal charges, a $0.2 million charge for employee terminations from operational efficiency activities, and a $0.2 million
charge for facility closure and operational efficiency activities.

Other income. For the three months ended March 31, 2022, other income was $27.4 million, driven by the gain on sale of property and
equipment primarily from the sale of corporate owned real estate in a sale leaseback transaction of the Hawthorne Property in March
2022.

Interest and other expense, net. For the three months ended March 31, 2022, interest and other expense, net was $2.3 million as
compared to $4.2 million in the same prior-year period. This decrease was driven by our adoption of ASU 2020-06 (see Note 1 to the
condensed consolidated financial statements for further discussion) and was partially offset by higher average interest rates and average
levels of borrowing under our revolving credit facility during the three months ended March 31, 2022 in comparison with the levels of
borrowing during the same period in the prior year. Interest expense during the three months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 included
$0.2 and $2.2 million of non-cash interest expense, respectively, primarily related to the Notes.

Income taxes. The effective tax rate for a particular period varies depending on a number of factors, including (i) the mix of income
earned in various tax jurisdictions, each of which applies a unique range of income tax rates and income tax credits, (ii) changes in
previously established valuation allowances for deferred tax assets (changes are based upon our current analysis of the likelihood that
these deferred tax assets will be realized), (iii) the level of non-deductible expenses, (iv) certain tax elections (v) tax holidays granted to
certain of our international subsidiaries and (vi) discrete tax items. For the three months ended March 31, 2022, we recognized a
provision for income taxes of $10.8 million compared to $9.5 million for the comparable prior-year period. The effective tax rates for the
three months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 were 20.1% and 33.7%, respectively. During the three month periods ended March 31,
2022, we recognized a net discrete tax benefit of $0.2 million related to equity-based compensation under ASU 2016-09 and changes in
prior year tax estimates. During the three months ended March 31, 2021, we recognized a net discrete tax expense of $2.2 million for
changes in prior year tax estimates of $2.4 million, offset by a discrete tax benefit of ($0.2) million for equity-based compensation under
ASU 2016-09.

Results of Operations for the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2021 (YTD Q3 Fiscal 2021) Compared to the Nine Months Ended
March 31, 2022 (YTD Q3 Fiscal 2022) (amounts in millions)

Net Revenues

The table below and the discussion that follows are based upon the way in which we analyze our business. See Note 12 to the condensed
consolidated financial statements for additional information about our business segments.

YTD Q3 % Net of YTD Q3 % Net of  
    Fiscal 2021      Revenues    Fiscal 2022      Revenues    $Change     % Change  

Security $  431.4   53 %  $  454.1   53 %  $  22.7   5.3 %
Healthcare   160.4   20   155.2   19   (5.2)  (3.2)
Optoelectronics and Manufacturing   222.9   27   237.1   28   14.2   6.4

Total net revenues $  814.7   100 %  $  846.4   100 %  $  31.7   3.9 %

Revenues for the Security division during the nine months ended March 31, 2022 increased on a year-over-year basis. Our product
revenues increased by approximately $18.7 million, and our service revenues increased by approximately $4.0 million as compared to
the prior year comparable period.
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Revenues for the Healthcare division during the nine months ended March 31, 2022 decreased 3% year-over-year. While cardiology sales
increased by approximately $5.2 million and service, supplies and accessories sales increased by approximately $2.5 million, patient
monitoring sales decreased by approximately $12.9 million.

Revenues for the Optoelectronics and Manufacturing division during the nine months ended March 31, 2022 increased year-over year as
a result of an increase in revenue in our contract manufacturing business of approximately $6.8 million coupled with an increase in sales
of approximately $7.4 million in our optoelectronics business.

Gross Profit

YTD Q3 % of YTD Q3 % of  
    Fiscal 2021     Net Revenues     Fiscal 2022     Net Revenues  

Gross profit $  301.9   37.1 %  $  302.0   35.7 %

Gross profit was comparable with the prior year on a 3.9% increase in sales as result of a reduced gross margin driven by the mix of sales
and increased costs. Our cost of goods sold increased year-over-year primarily as a result of the increase in revenues and higher raw
material and freight costs. Gross profit as a percentage of net revenues during the nine months ended March 31, 2022 decreased on a
year-over-year basis due to (i) strong sales growth within our Optoelectronics and Manufacturing division (which has the lowest gross
margin among our divisions), (ii) a reduction in revenues in our Healthcare division (which has the highest gross margin among our
divisions), and (iii) a reduction in the Security division gross margins due to increased component and freight costs, a less favorable sales
mix and a reduced service gross margin.

Operating Expenses

YTD Q3 % of YTD Q3 % of  
    Fiscal 2021    Net Revenues    Fiscal 2022    Net Revenues    $Change    % Change  

Selling, general and administrative $  172.6   21.2 %  $  170.0   20.1 %  $  (2.6)  (1.5)
 
%

Research and development   39.8   4.9   44.9   5.3   5.1   12.8
Impairment, restructuring and other charges (benefit), net   7.9   0.9   4.9   0.6   (3.0)  (38.0)

Total operating expenses $  220.3   27.0 %  $  219.8   26.0 %  $  (0.5)  (0.3)
 
%

Selling, general and administrative. SG&A expense for the nine months ended March 31, 2022 was lower than such expense in the
same prior-year period due to reduced provision for losses on accounts receivable coupled with certain bad debt recoveries totaling $10.0
million as well as a net benefit of $3.0 million for the change in contingent consideration and other miscellaneous reductions of
approximately $1.2 million. These decreases were partially offset by an increase in employee compensation expense of $6.7 million,
increased travel and entertainment of $2.5 million and increased marketing expenses of $2.8 million.

Research and development. The increase in R&D expense during the nine months ended March 31, 2022 from the same prior-year
period was primarily due to higher employee compensation and outside services expenses of $5.2 million and $0.8 million, respectively,
to support new product development initiatives primarily in our Security and Healthcare divisions. This increase was partially offset by
reductions in supplies and other expenses of approximately $0.9 million.

Impairment, restructuring and other charges (benefit). During the nine months ended March 31, 2022, impairment, restructuring and
other charges of $4.8 million consisted of $3.5 million for legal charges, $1.0 million in charges for employee terminations, $0.3 million
in acquisition related costs. During the nine months ended March 31, 2021, we incurred $7.2 million for exit activities associated with an
expired turnkey contract in Mexico. Such exit costs included $2.8 million for employee terminations, $1.1 million for facility closure and
other exit costs, direct transaction costs of $2.7 million, and $0.6 million for right-of-use asset impairment for a leased facility. We also
incurred costs of $1.6 million for other employee terminations and facility closure costs for operational efficiency activities and $0.3
million for acquisition-related activities. This was offset by a net benefit of ($1.2) million for reimbursements from our insurance carriers
for covered legal charges.

Other income. For the nine months ended March 31, 2022, other income was $27.4 million, driven by the gain on sale of property and
equipment primarily from the sale of corporate owned real estate in a sale leaseback transaction of the Hawthorne Property in March
2022.
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Interest and other expense, net. For the nine months ended March 31, 2022, interest and other expense, net was $6.5 million as
compared to $12.6 million in the comparable prior-year period. This decrease was driven by our adoption of ASU 2020-06 (see Note 1 to
the condensed consolidated financial statements for further discussion) and was partially offset by higher average levels of borrowing
under our revolving credit facility during the nine months ended March 31, 2022 compared to the same period in the prior year. Interest
expense during the nine months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 included $0.3 million and $6.7 million, respectively, of non-cash
interest expense, which was primarily related to the Notes.

Income taxes. For the nine months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, we recognized a provision for income taxes of $21.4 million and
$20.8 million, respectively. The effective tax rate for the nine months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 was 20.8% and 30.1%,
respectively. During the nine months ended March 31, 2022, we recognized a net discrete tax benefit of $2.0 million related to equity-
based compensation under ASU 2016-09. During the nine months ended March 31, 2021, we recognized a net discrete tax expense of
$2.3 million for changes in prior year tax estimates of $2.8 million, offset by a ($0.5) million tax benefit from equity-based compensation
under ASU 2016-09.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal sources of liquidity are our cash and cash equivalents, cash generated from operations and our credit facilities. Cash and
cash equivalents totaled $83.3 million at March 31, 2022, an increase of $2.7 million, or 3.3%, from $80.6 million at June 30, 2021. We
currently anticipate that our available funds, credit facilities and cash flow from operations will be sufficient to meet our operational cash
needs for the next 12 months and the foreseeable future. In addition, we anticipate that cash generated from operations, without
repatriating earnings from our non-U.S. subsidiaries, and our credit facilities will be sufficient to satisfy our obligations in the U.S.

We have a $750 million credit facility that is comprised of a $600 million revolving credit facility, which includes a $300 million
subfacility for letters of credit, and a $150 million delayed draw term loan. The term loan is available to us to draw through September 1,
2022. As of March 31, 2022, there was $73.0 million outstanding under our revolving credit facility, $85.2 million of outstanding letters
of credit, and $50 million outstanding under the term loan.

Cash Provided by Operating Activities. Cash flows from operating activities can fluctuate significantly from period to period, as net
income, adjusted for non-cash items, and working capital fluctuations impact cash flows. During the nine months ended March 31, 2022,
we generated cash from operations of $41.8 million compared to $131.1 million in the same prior-year period. This decrease was driven
by increases in inventory, decreases in accounts payable and the amount of advance deposits received from customers and other changes
in net working capital.

Cash Used in Investing Activities. Net cash used in investing activities was $6.6 million for the nine months ended March 31, 2022 as
compared to $26.2 million in the same prior-year period. The decrease in cash used in investing activities was driven primarily by $32
million of proceeds for the sale of corporate owned real estate in a sale leaseback transaction of the Hawthorne Property. Cash used to
acquire businesses was $14.1 million during the nine-month period ended March 31, 2022 compared to $3.0 million in the prior year.
Capital expenditures in the nine-month period ended March 31, 2022 were $10.3 million compared to $11.2 million in the same prior-
year period. Expenditures for intangible and other assets in the nine-month period ended March 31, 2022 were $12.3 million compared to
$9.9 million in the same prior-year period. In addition, purchases of certificates of deposit in the nine-month period ended March 31,
2022 were $2.2 million compared to $4.8 million in the same prior-year period.

Cash Used in Financing Activities. Net cash used in financing activities was $30.9 million during the nine months ended March 31,
2022, compared to $91.4 million during the same prior-year period. The changes in cash used in financing activities primarily relate to (i)
net proceeds from borrowings on term loan of $50.0 million and bank lines of credit totaling $73.0 million in the nine month period
ended March 31, 2022 compared to net repayments of borrowings of $59.0 million in the same prior-year period and (ii) $116.2 million
used for share repurchases and taxes paid related to the net share settlement of equity awards in the nine month period ended March 31,
2022 compared to $36.6 million for the same prior-year period.

Borrowings

See Note 8 to the condensed consolidated financial statements for a detailed discussion regarding our revolving credit facility and our
Notes.
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Cash Held by Foreign Subsidiaries

Our cash and cash equivalents totaled $83.3 million at March 31, 2022. Of this amount, approximately 79% was held by our foreign
subsidiaries and subject to repatriation tax considerations. These foreign funds were held primarily by our subsidiaries in the United
Kingdom, Singapore, India, Malaysia and Canada and, to a lesser extent, in Australia, Albania, Indonesia and Mexico among others. We
intend to permanently reinvest certain earnings from foreign operations, and we currently do not anticipate that we will need this cash in
foreign countries to fund our U.S. operations. In the event we repatriate cash from certain foreign operations and if taxes have not
previously been withheld on the related earnings, we would provide for withholding taxes at the time we change our intention with
regard to the reinvestment of those earnings.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table contains information about the shares of common stock we purchased during the quarter ended March 31, 2022:

Maximum number (or
approximate dollar

value) of
Total number of shares (or
shares (or units) units)

purchased as that may
Total number of Average price part of publicly yet be purchased
shares (or units) paid per share (or announced plans or under the plans or

    purchased     unit)     programs     programs (1)
January 1 to January 31, 2022   24,000 $  82.49   24,000   2,042,699
February 1 to February 28, 2022   405,130  80.94   405,130   1,637,569
March 1 to March 31, 2022   206,832  81.14   206,832   1,430,737

  635,962   635,962

(1) In April 2020, the Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program of up to 1,000,000 shares of common stock. In August
2020, the Board of Directors increased the maximum number of shares to 3,000,000 shares authorized under the stock repurchase
program. Upon repurchase, the shares are restored to the status of authorized but unissued shares, and we record them as a reduction
in the number of shares of common stock issued and outstanding in our consolidated financial statements.

Contractual Obligations

During the nine months ended March 31, 2022, there were no material changes outside the ordinary course of business to the information
regarding specified contractual obligations contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. See
Notes 1, 6, 8 and 10 to the condensed consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding our contractual obligations.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of March 31, 2022, we did not have any significant off-balance sheet arrangements, other than those previously disclosed.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

For information with respect to recent accounting pronouncements and the potential impact of those pronouncements on our condensed
consolidated financial statements, see Note 1 to the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

For a discussion of our exposure to market risk, refer to our market risk disclosures set forth in Part II, Item 7A “Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. There have
been no material changes in our exposure to market risk during the nine months ended March 31, 2022 from that described in the Annual
Report.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of March 31, 2022, the end of the period covered by this report, our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our
Chief Financial Officer, reviewed and evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e)
or 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act). Based upon management’s review and evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer have concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in our Exchange Act reports is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the SEC and is accumulated and communicated to
management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the third quarter of fiscal 2022 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls and Procedures

In designing and evaluating our controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well
designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management is required to
apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Because of the inherent limitations in
all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud within the
Company have been detected.
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PART II—OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we are subject to legal proceedings, claims, and litigation arising in the ordinary course of our business or otherwise.
More information regarding legal proceedings in which we are involved can be found under Note 10, “Commitments and Contingencies”
of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Part I, Item 1 of this Report, which is incorporated by reference into this Item 1.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The discussion of our business, financial condition and results of operations in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
March 31, 2022 should be read together with the risk factors contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2021, filed with the SEC on August 23, 2021, which describe various risks and uncertainties that could materially affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations in the future. There have been no material changes to the risk factors included in our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, except as follows.

The conflict between Russia and Ukraine and the related implications may negatively impact our operations.

In February 2022, Russia invaded Ukraine. As a result, the U.S. and certain other countries have imposed sanctions on Russia and could
impose further sanctions that could damage or disrupt international commerce and the global economy. It is not possible to predict the
broader or longer-term consequences of this conflict or the sanctions imposed to date, which could include further sanctions, embargoes,
regional instability, geopolitical shifts and adverse effects on macroeconomic conditions, security conditions, currency exchange rates
and financial markets. Such geopolitical instability and uncertainty could have a negative impact on our ability to sell to, ship products
to, collect payments from, and support customers in certain regions based on trade restrictions, embargoes and export control law
restrictions, and logistics restrictions including closures of air space, and could increase the costs, risks and adverse impacts from supply
chain and logistics challenges.

The potential effects of the conflict between Russia and Ukraine also could impact many of the other risk factors described in Item 1A,
Risk Factors, in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. Given the evolving nature of this conflict, the
related sanctions, potential governmental actions and economic impact, such potential impacts remain uncertain. While we expect the
impacts of conflict between Russia and Ukraine to continue to have an effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations, we are unable to predict the extent or nature of these impacts at this time.

The risks described above and in our Annual Report on Form 10-K are not the only risks we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not
currently known to us or that we currently deem to be immaterial also may materially and adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations. Further, COVID-19 and its impact on the global health and economic environment, as well as
reactions to resurgences of COVID-19 or other future pandemics, could also amplify the other risk factors described in our Annual
Report on Form 10-K and thus materially affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

See Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities discussion under Part I, Item 2 - Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations, which is incorporated by reference into this Item 2.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

None
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number     Description

31.1 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INS XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema

101.CAL Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase

101.DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase

101.LAB Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase

101.PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL with applicable taxonomy extension information contained in
Exhibits 101)
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Hawthorne, State of California on the 29th day of April 2022.

OSI SYSTEMS, INC.

By: /s/ Deepak Chopra
Deepak Chopra

President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

By: /s/ Alan Edrick
Alan Edrick

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

Certification required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a)
and under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Deepak Chopra, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of OSI Systems, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in
this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 29, 2022

/s/ Deepak Chopra
Deepak Chopra

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

Certification required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a)
and under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Alan Edrick, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of OSI Systems, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in
this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 29, 2022

/s/ Alan Edrick
Alan Edrick

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of OSI Systems, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2022, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Deepak Chopra, Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company at the dates and for the periods presented in the Report.

Date: April 29, 2022

/s/ Deepak Chopra
Deepak Chopra

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, is not being filed as part of the Report or as a
separate disclosure document, and is not being incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (whether made before or after the date of the Report),
irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing. The signed original of this certification required by
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of OSI Systems, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2022, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Alan Edrick, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company at the dates and for the periods presented in the Report.

Date: April 29, 2022

/s/ Alan Edrick
Alan Edrick

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, is not being filed as part of the Report or as a
separate disclosure document, and is not being incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (whether made before or after the date of the Report),
irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing. The signed original of this certification required by
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.


